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KPMG Al Fozan & Al Sadhan pwc

AUDIT REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE MEDITERRANEAN AND GULF COOPERATIVE
INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANY

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

SCOFE OF AUDIT

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of The Mediterranean and Gulf
Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company (A Saudi Joint Stock Company) (the “Company”)
as at December 31, 2014 and the related statements of income - insurance operations and accumulated
surplus, shareholders’ operations, comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity, insursnce
operations’ and shareholders’ cash flows for the year then ended and notes | to 32 which form an
integral part of these financial statements. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management and have been prepared by them in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, the provisions of Article 123 of the Regulations for Companies and the
Company’s By-laws and submitted to us together with all the information and explanations which we
required. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit,
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. An audit
includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonabie degree of assurance to enable s to express an opinion on the
financial statements.

UNQUALIFIED OPINION
“In our opinion the financial statements taken as a whole:

*  present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 3 1,
2014 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards; and

* comply with the requirements of the Regulation for Companies and the Company’s by-laws in so
far as they affect the preparation and presentation of the financial statements.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

We draw attention to the fact that these financial statements are prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Framework and not in accordance with the accounting standards
generaily accepted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia as issued by the Saudi Organization for Certified
Public Accountants,

KPMG Al Fozan & Al Sadhan PricewaterhouseCoopers
P. 0. Box 92876., P. 0. Box 8282
Riyadh 11663 % Riyadh 11482
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As At 3] December 2014
(Amounts in SR)

INSURANCE OPERATIONS’ ASSETS

Bank balances and cash

Time deposits

Policyholders’ and reinsurance balances receivable
Investments

Due from related parties

Due from shareholders® operations
Reinsurers® share of outstanding claims
Reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums
Deferred policy acquisition costs
Prepayments and other assets

Property and equipment, net

TOTAL INSURANCE OPERATIONS’ ASSETS

SHAREHOLDERS’ ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Time deposits

Due from insurance operations
Investments

Prepayments and other agsets
Investment in an associate
Land

Statutory deposit

Goodwill

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

The accompanying notes 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Notes 2014 2013
vi 688,967,126 686,594,970
8 227,222,265 129,639,726
9 1,325,049,622 1,240,053,958

13 (a) 97,732,546 90,875,000
10 73,751,591 68,969,606
- 268,878,984
11 (a) 651,679,235 605,687,165
15 1,033,651,418 919,402,928
16 200,486,008 174,854,095
14 27,212,521 118,096,148
17 51,563,979 39,586,774
4,371,316,311 4,342,639,354
7 241,618,786 315,793,912
8 - 126,149,039
60,873,479 -
13 (b) 270,415,402 211,127,052
14 1,678,647 2,787,249
12 6,000,000 6,000,000
30,000,000 30,000,000
18 107,382,259 106,308,807
19 480,000,000 480,000,000
1,197,968,573 1,278,166,059
5,575,284,884 5,620,805,413
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
As At 31 December 2014

(Amounts in SR)
Notes 2014 2013

INSURANCE OPERATIONS' LIABILITIES AND SURPLUS
Gross outstanding claims 11 1,272,301,117 1,451,905,914
Due to related parties 16 28,178,554 12,211,276
Due to shareholders’ operations 60,873,479 -
Accounts and commission payable 180,814,057 73,314,933
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 20 78,245,287 78,858,790
Reinsurance balances payable 84,139,436 294,402,083
Surplus distribution payable 106,591,151 85,595,806
Unearned reinsurance commission 22 73,457,867 39,772,672
Gross unearned premiums 15 2,483,739,0'78 2,298,631,011
Other reserves 7,131,898 6,327,378
TOTAL INSURANCE OPERATIONS’ LIABILITIES 4,375,471,924 4,341,019,863
INSURANCE OPERATIONS’ SURPLUS
Cumulative change in fair values of available for sale investments 13 (a) 1,844,387 1,619,491
TOTAL INSURANCE OPERATIONS’ LIABILITIES AND

SURPLUS 4,377,316,311 4,342,639,354
SHAREHOLDERS’ LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS® LIABILITIES
Accrued expenses and other liahilities 20 2,391,777 899,500
Provision for zakat and income tax 25 19,506,624 12,453,909
Due to Insurance operation - 268,878,984
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' LIABILITIES 21,898,401 282,232,393
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital 26 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Statutory reserve 3 146,134,974 139,374,369
Accumulated surplus / (deficit) 19,989,704 (159,694,752)
Cumulative changes in fair values of available for sale investments 13 (b) 9,945,494 16,254,049
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 1,176,070,172 995,933,666
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 1,197,968,573 1,278,166,059
TOTAL LIABILITIES, INSURANCE OPERATIONS’

SURPLUS AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY / 5,575,284,884 5,620,805,413

]
/”W L

The accompanying notes 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF INCOME - INSURANCE OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS / DEFICIT

For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

(Amounts in SR)

(Gross premiums written
Less: Reinsurance premiums ceded

Excess of loss premiums
NET PREMIUMS WRITTEN

Change in unearned premiums, net

NET PREMIUMS EARNED

Gross claims paid and other expenses
Reinsurers’ share of gross claims paid
Change in outstanding claims, net
Change in other reserves

NET CLAIMS INCURRED

Policy acquisition costs

Reinsurance commission income
NET UNDERWRITING RESULT

General and administrative expenses
Special commission income
Other income

INSURANCE OPERATIONS’
SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)
Shareholders’ appropriation

from insurance operations’ (surplus) / deficit

Insurance operations’ surplus after shareholders’ appropriation

Surplus distribution

Notes 2014 2013
15 4,415,993,030 4,137,512,368
(1,197,206,440) (1,127,792,216)
(20,739,697) (117.451,386)
3,198,046,893 2,892,268,766
(70,859,577) (294,620,355)
3,127,187,316 2,597,648,411
11(a) (3,541,412,022) (2,704,174,962)
11 (a) 694,946,433 537,901,527
225,596,867 (465,871,759)
(804,520) 672,622
11 (2,621,673,242) (2,631,472,572)
16 (162,690,998) (120,949,734)
22 78,593,396 108,218,360
421,416,472 (46,555,535)
23 (290,726,088) (233,812,050)
7,887,725 6,256,536
24 71,375,341 76,175,637
3 209,953,450 (197,935,412)
3 (188,958,105) 197935412
20,995,345 -
3 (20,995,345) -

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

The accompanying notes 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance C
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

ompany

STATEMENT OF INCOME / (LOSS) - SHAREHOLDERS’ OPERATIONS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

(Amounts in SR)
Notes 2014 2013

INCOME
Shareholders’ appropriation from

insurance operations’ surplus / (deficit) 3 188,958,105 (197,935,412)
Special commission income 7,312,251 15,277,865
Realised losses on sale of available for sale investments (1,021,115) (162,308)
Dividend income on available for sale investments 1,831,074 1,823,728

197,080,315 (180,996,127)

EXPENSES
General and administrative expenses 23 (3,582,539) (11,465,250)
NET INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 193,497,776 (192,461,377
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS / (LOSSES) PER SHARE 27 1.93 (1.92)

Iz

| part of these financial statements.

int
The accogggxing notes | to 32 form an integra, :




The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’ COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

(Amounts in SR)

Note 2014 2013
NET INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 193,497,776 (192,461,377
Other comprehensive income / (loss):
Items that cannot be recycled back to statement of income in
future
Zakat and income tax 25(c) (7,052,715) (4,730,853)
Items that can be recycled back to statement of income in future
Available for sale investments
Net change in fair values (5,287,440) 7,133,074
Loss transferred to statement of income — Shareholders’ operations (1,021,115) (162,308)
Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (6,308,5558) 6,970,766
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS) FOR THE
YEAR 180,136,506 (190,221,464)

The accompanying notes 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

For the Year Ended 31 December 2014
(Amounts in SR)

Balance at 1 January 2014

Total comprehensive income for the year

Net income for the year
Zakat and income tax
Net change in fair values
Net amount transferred to statement of income -
sharcholders’ operations
Transfer to statutory reserve

Balance at 31 December 2014

Balance at I January 2013

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Net loss for the year
Zakat and income tax
Net change in fair values
Net amount transferred to statement of income -
shareholders’ operations

Bonus shares issued

Balance at 31 December 2013

The accompanying notes 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Accumulated
Sharz Statutory retained earnings/  Avallable for sale
capital reserve (deficit) investments Total
1,0600.000.000 139,374.369 (159,694,752) 16,254.049 995,933.666
- - 193,497,776 - 193,497,776
- - (7,052,715) - (7,052,715)
- - - (5,287,440) (5,287,440)
- (1,021,115) (1,021,115)
- 6,760,605 (6,760,605) - -
1,000,000,000 146,134,974 19,989,704 9,945,494 1,176,070,172
800,000,000 139.374.369 237.497 478 9.283.283 1.186.,155.130
- - (192,461,377) - (192,461,377)
- - (4,730,853) - (4,730,853)
- - - 6,970,766 6,970,766
200,000,000 - (200,000,000) - -
1,000,000,000 139,374,369

(159,694,752)

16,254,049

995,933,666




The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF INSURANCE OPERATIONS’ CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

(Amounts in SR)
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
Notes
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Insurance operations’ surplus after shareholders’ appropriation 20,995,345 -
Adjustments to reconcile insurance operations’ surplus afier shareholders'
appropriation to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation 10,039,531 10,493,194
Special commission income (7,887,725) (6,256,536)
Gain on sale of property and equipment, net (144,339) (156,102)
Cash from operations 23,002,812 4,080,556
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Gross unearned premiums 185,108,067 579,978,794
Reinsurers’ share of uneamed premiums (114,248,490)  (285,358,439)
Policyholders’ and reinsurance balances receivable (84,995,664) 55,580,395
Due from related parties (4,912,478)  (20,242,851)
Due to related parties 16,097,771 (33,633,932)
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims (45,992,070) (8,327,670)
Deferred policy acquisition costs (25,631,913)  (139,835,990)
Prepayments and other assets 90,883,627 (57,066,167)
Deposit against letters of guarantee (7,974,466) (698,003)
Gross outstanding claims (179,604,797) 474,199,429
Due from / (to} shareholders’ operations, net 329,752,463  (345,248,751)
Accounts and commissions payable 107,499,124 26,385,378
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (613,503) 15,040,464
Reinsurance balances payable (210,262,647) 132,267,721
Unearned reinsurance commission 33,685,195 (10,128,816)
Other reserves 804,520 (672,622)
Net cash from operating activities 112,597,551 386,319,496
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Time deposits (97,582,539) 8,363,804
Special commission income 7,887,725 6,256,536
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 329,364 468,369
Purchase of available for sale investments 13 (a) (26,632,650) -
Proceeds from sale of available for sale investments 13 (a) 20,000,000 20,000,000
Purchase of property and equipment (22,201,761) (18,167,732)
Net cash (used in) / from investing activities (118,199,861) 16,921,067
DECREASE / INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (5,602,310) 403,240,563
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE
YEAR 7 679,544,481 276,303,918
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 7 673,942,171 679,544,481
Non-cash transaction: '
Change in fair values of available for sale investments M/ 13 (a) 224,896 501,053
7,

statements.

The accompanying notes 1 to 32 form an integral pzn-{msa financi
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’ CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014
(Amounts in SR)

31 December 31 December
2014 2013
Notes
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income / (loss) for the year 193,497,776  (192,461,377)
Adjustments for:
Special commission income (7,312,251) (15,277,863)
Dividend income on available for sale investments (1,831,074) (1,823,728)
Realised loss on sale of available for sale investments 1,621,115 162,308
Impairment on investment in an associate - 8,300,000
Cash from operations 185,375,566  (201,400,662)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Due (to} / from insurance operations, net (329,752,463) 345,248,751
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,492,277 674,500
Zakat and income tax paid 25 (c) - (38,677,648)
Prepayments and other assets 1,108,662 (313,666)
Increase in statutory deposit - (20,000,000)
Interest on statutory deposit (1,873,452) {(870,556)
Net cash (used in) / from operating activities (142,849,470) 85,260,719
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Time deposits 126,149,039 (60,294,391)
Purchase of available for sale investments 13 (b) (122,627,339) (29,972 ,505)
Proceeds from sale of available for sale investments 13 (b) 56,009,319 22,512,592
Special commission income 7,312,251 15,277,865
Dividend income on available for sale investments 1,831,674 1,823,728
Net cash from / (used in) investing activities 68,674,344 (50,652,711)
(DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (74,175,126) 34,608,008
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF
THE YEAR 7 315,793,912 281,185,904
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE 241,618,786 315,793,912
YEAR 7
Non-cash transactions:
Change in fair values of available for sale investments 13 (b) (6,308,555) 6,970,766
Increase in share capital due to bonus issue - 200,000,000

The accompanying notes 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements//m\/
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2014

1. ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company (the "Company”) is a Saudi Joint
Stock Company registered in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under Commercia! Registration No, 1010231925 dated
8 Rabi Thani [428H (corresponding to 26 April 2007). The registered office address of the Company is P.0. Box
2302, Riyadh 11451, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The objectives of the Company are to transact cooperative
insurance and reinsurance business and related activities in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. lts principal lines of
business include all classes of general insurance, The Company was listed on the Saudi Arabian Stock Exchange
(Tadawul) on 28 Rabi Al-Awal 1428H (corresponding to 16 April 2007).

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

Basis of measurentent
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement at fair value of
avatlable for sale investments and investment in an associate which is accounted for under the equity method.

Statement of compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).

As required by Saudi Arabian insurance regulations, the Company maintains separate accounts for Insurance
Operations and Shareholders’ Operations and presents the financial statements accordingly. The physical custody of
all assets related to the Insurance Operations and Shareholders’ Operations are held by thie Company. Revenues and
expenses clearly attributable to either activity are recorded in the respective accounts, The basis of allocation of
other revenue and expenses from joint operations is as determined by the management and Board of Directors.

Functional and presentational currency
The functional and presentational currency of the Company is Saudi Arabian Riyals.

3. SURPLUS DISTRIBUTION

The Company is required to distribute 10% of the net surplus from insurance operations to policyholders and the
remaining 90% to be ailocated to the shareholders of the Company in accordance with the Insurance Law and
implementation Regulations issued by the Saudi Arabian Monetary Agency ("SAMA”).

The insurance operations’ surplus of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to SR
209,953,450 (31 December 2013: deficit of SR. 197,935,412). Accordingly, 90% of insurance operations surplus
amounting to SR 188,958,105 {31 December 2013: 100% loss amounting to SR 197,935,142 from insurance
operation} has been transferred to the shareholders’ operations for the year, leaving a surplus payable to
policyholders of SR 20,995,345 for the year 2014 (31 December 2013: no surplus payable).




The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2014

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those
followed in the preparation of the Company’s annual financial statements for the vear ended 3| December 2013,
The Company has adopted the following new standards and amendment, which are effective for the Company’s
financial years starting 2014 and thereafier. Adoption of these standards will not result any significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements:

New and amended standards issued and adopted

-Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and 1AS 27 that provides consolidation relief for investments funds applicable
from | January 2014. This mandatory consolidation relief provides that a qualifying investment entity is required to
account for investments in controlled entities as well as investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value
through profit or loss provided it fulfils certain conditions with an exception being that subsidiaries that are
considered an extension of the investment entity’s investing activities.

-1AS 32 amendment applicable from I January 2014 clarifies that a) an entity currently has a legally enforceable
right to off-set if that right is not contingent on a future event and enforceable both in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the entity and all counterparties; and b) gross settlement is
equivalent to net settlement if and only if the gross settlement mechanism has features that eliminate or result in
insignificant credit and tiquidity risk and processes receivables and payables in a single settlement process or cycle,

-IAS 36 amendment applicable retrospectively from 1 January 2014 addresses the disclosure of information about
the recoverable amount of impaired assets under the amendments, recoverable amount of every cash generating unit
to which goodwill or indefinite-lived intangible assets have been allocated is required to be disclosed only when an
impairment loss has been recognised or reversed,

-IAS 39 amendment applicable from 1 January 2014 added a limited exception to 1AS 39, to provide relief from
discontinuing an existing hedging relationship when a novation that was not contemplated in the original hedging
documentation meets specified criteria,

Standards Issued but not yet effective

In addition to the above mentioned standards, the following standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet
effective, up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company
intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become effective. Further, the Company has chosen not to
early adopt the amendments and revisions to the International Financial Reporting Standards which have been
published and are mandatory for compliance for the Company with effect from future dates.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9, as issued, reflects the first phase of the TASB’s work though the adoption date is subject to the recently
issued Exposure Draft on the replacement of 1AS 39 and applies to classification and measurement of financial
assets and liabilities as defined in IAS 39. The standard was initially effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013, but Amendments to IFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures,
issued in December 2011, moved the mandatory effective date to | January 2015,

However, on 19 November 2013, the JASB issued IFRS 9 Financial Instruments {Hedge Accounting and
amendments to IFRS 9) amending IFRS 9 to include the new general hedge accounting model. In its February 2014
meeting, the IASB tentatively decided that TFRS ¢ would be mandatorily effective for years ending on or after 31
December 2018.




The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TOTHEF INANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2014

5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The following is a summary of significant accounting policies foliowed in preparation of these financial statermnents:

Cash and casl equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and at banks and short-term time deposits with an original
maturity of less than three months at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the fair value of the consideration paid in excess of the fair value of net assets or liabilities
acquired, Goodwill is tested for impairment by management at least once at the end of each financial year.
Impairment for goodwill is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit (or a group
of cash generating units) to which the goodwill is related. When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(or 2 group of cash generating units) is less than the carrying amount of the cash generating unit (or & group of cash
generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated, an impairment loss is recognised. Impairment losses
relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods,

Laud, property and equipment

Land is stated at cost less any impairment and is not depreciated, Property and equipment are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset. Depreciation is charged to the statement of insurance operations and accumulated surplus
on a straight line basis at the following depreciation rates:

Rates
Leasehold improvements 15% - 25%
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 0% - 15%
Computers 25%
Motor vehicles 25%

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment (calculated as the difference between the
net proceeds from disposat and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit or loss.

Juvestments

All investments are initially recognised at fair value, being the fair value of the consideration given, including
acquisition charges associated with the investment, Premiums and discounts are amortized on a systematic basis to
their maturity. For investments that are traded in organized financial markets, fair value is determined by reference
to exchange quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the statement of financial position date without any
deduction for transaction costs.

(w) Available for sale investments

Investments which are classified as "available for sale” are subsequently measured at fair value. Available for sale
investments are those investments that are not held to maturity nor held for trading, For an available for sale
investment where the fair value has not been hedged, any unrealized gain or loss arising from a change in its fair
value is recognised directly under insurance operations’ surplus and / or shareholders’ comprehensive income until
the investment is derecognized or impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised under
the insurance operations’ surplus and / or shareholders’ comprehensive income is included in the statement of
insurance operations and accumulated surplus and / or shareholders® operations for the year. Available for sale
investmenis whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at amortised cost less impairment provision.

(b} nvestments in held 1o maturity securities

Investments which have fixed or determinable payments that the Company has the positive intention and ability to
hold to maturity are subsequently measured at amortized cost, less provision for impairment in value. Amortized
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition. Any gain or loss on such
investments is recognised in the statement of shareholders' operations when the investment is derecognized or
impaired,

P2



The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 December 2014

5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e} Investment in an associnte

Associates are enterprises in which the Company generally holds 20% to 50% of the voting power and/or over
which it exercises significant influence. Investments in associates are carried in the statement of financial position at
cost, plus post acquisition changes in the Company’s share of net assets of the associate, less any impairment i the
value of individual investments.

Staiutory reserve

In accordance with its bylaws, the Company shall allocate 20% of its net income from shareholders’ operations
each year to the statutory reserve untit it has built up a reserve equal to the share capital, The reserve is not available
for distribution,

Impairment aud un-collectability of financial assets

An assessment is made at each statement of financial position date to determine whether there is objective evidence
that 2 financial asset or group of financial assets may be impaired. If such evidence exists, any impairment foss is
recognized in the statement of sharcholders’ operations. Impairment is determined as follows:

" For assets carried at fair value, impairment is the difference between the cost and fair valug, less any
impairment loss previously recognized in the statement of shareholders’ operations

- For assets carried at cost, impairment is the difference between the cost and the present value of fiture
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of returss for a similar financial asset.

u For assets carried at amortized cost, impairment is determined based on future cash flows that are

discounted at the original effective special commission rate.

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by the

supplier or not,

Zakat and income tax
Zakat and income tax are provided for in accordance with the Saudi Arabian Zakat and Tax Regulations and are

charged to the statement of shareholders’ comprehensive income.

Special coinmission income
Special commission income from time deposits is recognized on an effective yield basis.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has an obligation (legal or constructive) arising from past events, and
the costs fo settle the obligation are both probable and may be measured reliably. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Trade date acconnting

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized / derecognized on the trade date (i.e. the date
that the Company commits to purchase or sell the assets). Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
transactions that require settlement of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Employees’ end of service benefits

The Company provides end-of-service benefits to its employees. The entitlement to these benefits is based upon the
employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a minimum service period. The expected
costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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£, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Faoreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Saudi Riyals at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated to Saudi Riyals at the
rate of exchange ruling at the statement of financial position date. All differences are taken to the statements of
income - insurance operations and accumulated surplus / deficit and shareholders’ eperations. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are transiated using the exchange rate as at the
date of the initial transaction and are not subsequently restated, Foreign exchange gains or loss on available for sale
investments are recognised in under ’insurance operations surplus’ in the statement of insurance operations and
under other comprehensive income under the statement of shareholders’ comprehensive operations. As the
company’s foreign currency transactions are primarily in US dollars, foreign exchange gains and losses are not
significant.

Offsetting financial assets and Habilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position only
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a et
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expense are not offset in the
statement of shareholders’ operations unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation.

FPremiums earned and commission income

Premiums are taken into income over the terms of the policies to which they relate on a pro-rata basis. For
engineering construction projects with policy terms in excess of one year, the premium are taken into income
linearly over the policy term. Uncarned premiums represent the portion of premimms written relating to the
unexpired period of coverage.

The underwriting results represents premiums earned and fee and commission income less claims paid, other
underwriting expenses and anticipated claims payable in respect of the year, net of amounts subject to reinsurance,
less provision for any anticipated future losses on continuing policies,

Commission receivable on reinsurance contracts are deferred and amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of
the reinsurance contracts.

Retained premiums and commission income, which relate to unexpired risks beyond the end of the financial period,
are reported as unearned and deferred based on the following methods:

. 25% of premiums for marine cargo business

= For Engineering construction projects with policy terms in excess of one year, it is assumed that the risk is
increasing linearty over the policy term.

. Actual number of days for other lines of business

Premiums receivable

Premiums receivable are recognized when due and are measured on initial recognition at the fzir value of the
considerations received or receivable. The carrying value of premiums receivable is reviewed for impairment
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, with the impairment
loss recorded in the statement of insurance operations and accumulated surplus, Premiums receivable are
derecognized when the derecognition criteria for financial assets have been met.
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5, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Claims

Claims consist of amounts payable to contract holders and third parties and related loss adjustment expenses, net of
salvage and other recoveries, and are charged to statement of income - insurance operations and accumulated
surplus / deficit as incurred.

Gross outstanding claims comprise the gross estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the date of
statement of financial position, whether reported or not. Provisions for reported claims not paid as at the date of
statement of financial position are made on the basis of individua] case estimates. In addition, a provision based on
management’s judgment and the Company’s prior experience is maintained for the cost of settling claims incurred
but not reported at date of statement of financial position. The ultimate liability may be in excess of or less than the
amount provided.

Any difference between the provisions at the date of statement of financial position and settlements and provisions
in the following year is included in the underwriting account for that year, The Company does not discount its
tiabilities for unpaid ciaims as substantially all claims are expected to be paid within one year of the statement of
financial position date.

Liability adequacy test

At each statement of financial position date, the Company assesses whether its recognised insurance liabilities are
adequate using current estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts. If that assessment shows that
the carrying amount of its insurance liabilities (less related deferred policy acquisition costs) is inadequate in the
tight of estimated future cash flows, the entire deficiency is immediately recognised in the statement of insurance
operations and accumulated surplus and an unexpired risk provision is created.

Deferred policy acquisition costs

Commissions, SAMA fees, CCHI fees, TPA fees, partial administration cost (related to underwriting and issue of
policy), unearned portion of stamp charges (excluding motor business) and other costs directly related to the
acquisition and renewal of insurance contracts are deferred and amortized over the terms of the insurance contacts
to which they relate, similar to premiums earned. Al other acquisition costs are recognised as an expense when
incurred. Amortization is recorded in the statement of insurance operations and accumulated surplus,

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in
the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period and are treated as a change in accounting estimate.

An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication of impairment
arises. If the assumptions relating to future profitability of these policies are not realised, the amortization of these
costs could be accelerated and this may also require additional impairment write-offs in the statement of insurance
operations and accumulated surplus. Deferred policy acquisition costs are also considered in the liability adequacy
test for each reporting period.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continuned)

Reinsurauce

The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for all of its businesses. Reinsurance assets
represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Recoverable amounts are estimated in 4 manner consistent with
the outstanding claims provision and are in accordance with the reinsurance contract.

An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more frequently when an indication of impairment
arises during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when objective evidence exists that the Company may not
recover outstanding amounts under the terms of the contract and when the impact on the amounts that the Company
will receive from the reinsurer can be measured reliably. The impairment loss is recorded in the statement of
insurance operations,

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders.

Premiums and claims on assumed reinsurance are recognised as income and expenses in the same manner as they
would be if the reinsurance were considered direct business, taking into account the product classification of the
reinsured business,

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are estimated in a
manner consistent with the associated reinsurance contract,

Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both ceded and assumed reinsurance,

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or when the
contract is transferred to another party.

Unearned refusurance commission
Commission receivable on outwards reinsurance contracts are deferred and amortized over the terms of the
insurance contracts to which they relate. Amortisation is recorded in the statement of insurance operations.

Product classification

The Company issues insurance contracts that transfer insurance risk. Insurance contracts are those contracts where
the insurer accepts significant insurance risk from the policyholder by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a
specified uncertain future event adversely affects the policyholder. As a general guideline, the Company defines
significant insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event.

Derecoguition of financial instruments

The derecognition of a financial instrument takes place when the Company no longer controls the contractual rights
that comprise the financial instrument, which is normally the case when the instrument is sold, or alt the cash flows
attributable to the instrument are passed through to an independent third party.

Fair values

The fair value of financial assets are based on quoted prices for marketable securities or estimated fair values. The
fair value of commission-bearing items is estimated based on discounted cash flow using cornmission for items with
similar terms and risk characteristics.

For financial assets where there is no active market, fair value is determined by reference to the market value of a
similar financial assets or where the fair values cannot be derived from active market, they are determined using a
variety of valuation techniques that includes the use of mathematical models. The inputs of this models is taken
from observable market where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in
establishing fair values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Segmental reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that is engaged in business activities from which it earns
revenues and incurs expenses and about which discrete financial information is available that is evaluated regularly
by the chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. For
management purposes, the Company is organized into business units based on their products and services and has
three reportable operating segments as follows:

Medical insurance, which covers medical costs, medicines, and all other medical services and supplies.
Motor Insurance, which provides coverage against losses and liability related to motor vehicles, excluding
transpor! insurance.

. Other classes, which covers any other classes of insurance not included above.

Shareholders’ operations’ is a non-operating segment. Income earned from time deposits and investments is the
only revenue generating activity. Certain direct operating expenses and other overhead expenses are allocated to
this segment on an appropriate basis. The loss or surplus from the insurance operations is allocated to this segment
on an appropriate basis.

Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss which, in certain respects, is measured differently from
mcome or loss in the accompanying financial statements.

No inter-segment transactions occurred during the year, If any transaction were to occur, transfer prices betwsen
operating segments are set on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties. Segment
income, expense and results will then include those transfers between operating segments which will then be
eliminated at the level of financial statements of the Company.

6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the financial statements requires management 10 make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
reporting date. However, uncertainty about these estimates and assumptions could result i an outcome that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the finure,

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the date of statement
of financial position, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrving amounts of the
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance contracts

The estimation of the ultimate lability arising from claims made under insurance contracts is the Company’s most
critical accounting estimate. There are several sources of uncertainty that needed to be considered in estimating the
liability that the Company will ultimately pay for such claims. The provision for claims incurred but not reported
(IBNR) is an estimation of claims which are expected to be reported subsequent to the date of statement of financial
position, for which the insured event has occurred prior to the date of statement of financial position. The primary
technique adopted by management in estimating the cost of notified and IRNR claims, is that of using the past
ciaims settlement trends to predict future claims settlement trends.

Claims requiring court or arbitration decisions are estimated individually. independent loss adjusters normally
estimate property claims. Management reviews its provisions for claims incurred, and claims incurred but not
reported, on quarterly basis.

The Company is exposed to disputes with, and possibility of defaults by, its reinsurers. The Company monitors on a
quarterly basis the evolution of disputes with and the strength of its reinsurers
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6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

Impairment losses on receivables

The Company assesses receivables that are individually significant and receivables included in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics for impairment. Receivables that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment. This assessment of impairment requires judgment, In making this judgment, the
Company evaluates credit risk characteristics that consider past-due status being indicative of the abi lity to pay all
amounts due as per contractual terms.

Deferred policy acquisition costs

Certain acquisition costs related to the sale of new policies are recorded as deferred policy acquisition costs and are
amortized in the statement of insurance income - operations and accumulated surplus / deficit over the related
period of policy coverage. If the assumptions relating to future profitability of these policies are not realized, the
amortization of these costs could be accelerated and this may also require additional impairment write-offs in the
statement of insurance operations.

Goodwill

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The fair value less costs to sell calculation
is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s fength transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a
discounted cash flow model. The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted
cash flow model as well as the expected future cash inflows,

Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and related disclosure at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses for the reporting year. Although these estimates and judgments are based on management’s
best knowledge of the current events and actions but the actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities for the
current year and could also have an impact on the subsequent financial year. Such estimates and judgments are
constantly assessed based on historical experience and other factors such as expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the current circumstances.

Estimation of insurgnce contracts reserves:

Following are the critical areas of estimation and Jjudgments for medical business for which the Company acquires
services of independent ectuary to determine such reserves,

(i) Incurred but not reported claims (IBNR)

As a first step towards setting appropriate IBNR reserves for the medical line of business, a runoff analysis is
prepared to assess how the claims reserves determined at the previous valuation dates compare with actual
developments.

Results from runoff analysis are taken into consideration while setting reserves for IBNR claims. An analysis is

carried out by using the following methods:

®  Chain Ladder method - this builds up, using historical claims payment patterns, ratios of eventual cumulative
claims which have been incurred in a particular period to those which have been paid as at the end of a
reporting period.

* Bornheutter-Ferguson method — this is a technique that combines actual past claims experience and any prior
information or expectations that might be available concerning claims, for example expected ultimate loss
ratios.

¢ Hybrid method — this uses a combination of the Chain Ladder (CL) method and Bornheutter-Ferguson (BF)
method.
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6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS {Continued)
{ii) Premium deficiency reserve

Estimation of the premium deficiency for medical business is highly sensitive to a number of assumptions as to the
future events and conditions. It is based on an expected loss ratio for the unexpired portion of the risks for written
policies. To arrive at the estimate of the expected loss ratio, the actuary looks at the claims and premiums
relationship which is expected to realize in the future.

7. BANK BALANCES AND CASH
2014 2013
Insnrance Shareholders’ Insurance Shareholders’
Operations Operatious Operations Operations
SR SR SR 5R
Cash in hand and at banks 446,466,406 18,120,186 471,240,592 14,650,429
Short-term time deposits 227,475,765 223,498,600 208,303,889 301,143,483
Cash and cash equivalents in
tive statement of cash flows 673,942,171 241,618,786 679,544 481 315,793,912
Deposits against leiters of
guarantee 15,024,938 - 7,050,489 -
688,967,126 241,618,786 686,594,970 315,793,912

Cash at banks and short-term time deposits are placed with counterparties who have credit ratings equivalent to A+
to BBB ratings under Standard and Poor's, Fitch and Moody’s ratings methodology.

Short-term time deposits are placed with local and licensed foreign banks’ branches in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
with an original maturity of less than three months from the date of acquisition and earned special commission
income at an average rate of 0.77% per annum (2013: 2.66% per annum). The carrying amounts disclosed above
reasonably approximate the fair value at the statement of financial position date,

Deposits against letters of guarantee comprises amounts placed with a local bank against issuance of payment
guarantees in favour of the Company’s customers and service providers (note 29). As deposits against letters of
guarantee cannot be withdrawn before the end of guarantee and are restricted in nature.

8, TIME BEPOSITS

Time deposits are placed with counterparties that have credit ratings equivalent to BBB+ to BBB ratings under
Standard and Poor’s, Fitch and Moody’s ratings methodology.

Time deposits are placed with local and licensed foreign banks’ branches in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia with a
maturity of more than three months from the date of original acquisition and earned special commission income at
an average rate of 1.09% per annum (2013: 1.8% per annum),

The carrying amounts of the time deposits reasonably approximate the fair value at the statement of financial
position date.
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9. POLICYHOLDERS’ AND REINSURANCE BALANCES RECEIVABLE
2014 2013
SR SR

Policyholders’ receivable 1,229,689,664 1,254,544,899
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (136,570,377) {138,286,694)
1,093,119,287 1,116,258,203
Reinsurance balances receivable 236,861,490 127,010,591
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (4,931,155) {3,214,838)
231,930,335 123,795,753
Total premiums and reinsurance balances receivables, net 1,325,049,622 1,240,053,958

As at December 31, 2014, the movement in the provision for doubtful debts of premium receivables was as follows:

Balance, January |
Provided during the year
Reversal for the year

Balance, December 3|

2014 2013
SR SR
138,286,094 135,246,450
- 3,040,244
(1,716,317) -
136,570,377 138,286,694

As at December 31, 2014, the movement in the provision for doubtful debts of reinsurance receivables was as

follows:

Balance, lanuary 1
Write off during the year
Provided during the year

Balance, December 31

2014 2013
SR SR
3,214,838 6,255,082
- (3,040,244)
1,716,317 -
4,931,155 3,214,838

The aging analysis of premiums and reinsurance balances receivable is as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 is set as

below:
Neither past Past due but not impaired Past due
dute nor Less than 31to More than and
Total impaired 30 day 90 days 90 days impaired
SR SR SR SR SR SR
2014 1,466,551,154 766,763,020 230,206,160 308,568,114 19,512,328 141,501,532
2013 1,381,555,490 670,814,904 309,341,790 225277913 34,619,351 141,501,532

20



The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2014

g, PREMIUMS AND REINSURANCE BALANCES RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Premiums and reinsurance balances receivables comprise a large number of customers mainly within the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia as well as reinsurance companies mainly in Europe. Prerniums and reinsurance balances receivable
include SR 125,733,075 (31 December 2013: SR 202,557,489) due in foreign currencies, mainly US Dollars. The
Company’s terms of business require amounts to be paid within 30 to 90 days of the date of transaction.
Arrangements with reinsurers normally require settiement if the balance exceeds a certain agreed amount. No
individual or company as at 31 December 2014 accounts for more than 23% {31 December 2013: 19%) of the
premiums receivable, In addition, the five largest customers accounts for 42% (31 December 2013: 50%) of the
premiums receivable as at 31 December 2014,

Unimpaired premiums and reinsurance balances receivables are expected, on the basis of past experience, to be
fully recoverable. It is not the practice of the Company to obtain collateral over receivables and the vast majority
are, therefore, unsecured. The Company does not have an internal credit ratings assessment process and
accordingly, amounts which are neither past due nor impaired, i respect of premiums receivable balances, are from
individuals and unrated corporates. Balances due from reinsurers are with counterparties who have investment
grade credit ratings issued by external rating agencies.
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10, TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

(@) The following are the details of major related parly trarnsactions during the year and their balances at the end of
the year:

Nature of Amount of transaction for the
Related parties fransaction year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 203
SR SR SR SR

Balance

Due from related parties

Medgulf BSC - _Claims paid on

Operation account  behalf of parent 1,351,273 1,348,960 - -
(parent company)  company

-Operational

expenses paid on

behalf of parent 193,731 1,977,089 - -
company, CEO &

members of BOD

-Transfer of

investment 1,958,078 . i ]

-Balance due from } _ 23,879,189 24,292,263
at year end

Medgulf BSC-  porsonal expenses

Head office paid on behalf of 18,144 232,592 - -
account (parent BOD

compay)
-Expenses paid on

behalf of parent 953,651 3,385,720 - -
compary

-Expenses paid by

parent company on

behalf of Medgulf - 541,487
KSA

-Insurance

premium for )
employees of 28,446 70,279 -

parent company
-Reinsurance
recoveries on
behalf of parent
company
-Claims paid - 130,290 - -

-Rem‘surance 11,864,623
premiums ceded

-Payment received

on behalf of parent 2,786 380,526 - -
company

-Premium

refundable 2,581 1,289

328 307,831 - -

-Balance due from - - 24,297,042 23,309,168
at year end
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10.

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES {Continued)

Related parties

Nature of
transaction

Bue from related parties {continued)

Medgulf Egypt
(fellow
subsidiary)
Motion al-Saudia
{fellow
subsidiary)

Medguif Jordan
{fellow
subsidiary)

Addison Bradley
Arabia- KSA ~
{fellow
subsidiary)

-Balance due from
at year end

-Operational
expenditures paid
on behalf of fallow
subsidiary
-Payment on
account

-(3ross written
premiums
-Expenses paid by
fetlow subsidiary
on behalf of
Medgulf KSA
-Balance due from
at year end
-Expenses paid on
behalf of fellow
subsidiary
-Expenses paid by
Medgulf Jordan on
behalf of Medgulf
KSA

-Gross written
premiyms
-Payment received
from fellow
subsidiary
-Balance due to at
year end
-Expenses paid on
behalf of fellow
subsidiary

-Expenses paid by
fellow subsidiary
on behaif of
Medgulf KSA

-insurance for
employees of
fellow subsidiary
-Premium
refundable
-Payment received
from fellow
subsidiary

-Balance due from
at year end

Amount of transaction for the

Balance
year ended
21 December 31 December 31 December 3! December
2014 2013 2014 2013
SR SR SR SR

- - 57,797 57,797

- 16,900 - -

- 4327 - -

- 1,796 - -

- 22,500 - -

- - 10,924,474 10,924,474

956,558 11,250 - -

- 163,415 - -

- 54,392 - -

445,602 - - -
- - 25,248 470,850

3,084,986 4,317,538 - -

- 458,467 - -
62,454 125,394 - -
2,576 44,129 - -
21,319 366,594 - -

- - 13,064.874 10,021,326
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10. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Nature of
ransaction

Amount of transaction for the
Jyear ended
31 December 31 December

Related parties

Balance
31 December

31 December

Due {rom related parties (continued)

Allianz Bahrain
fellow
subsidiary}

Medgulf Lebanon
SAL (fellow
Subsidiary)

Al Samiya
Trading Co
ellow
subsidiary)

-Expenses paid on
behalf of fellow
subsidiary
-Payment received
from feliow
subsidiary
-Balance due from
at year end
-Claims paid by
fellow subsidiary
on behaif of
Medgulf KSA

-Expenses paid by
fellow subsidiary
on behalf of
Medgulf KSA
-Expenses paid on
behalf of fellow
subsidiary

-Gross written
premiums
~Payment made on
behalf of fellow
subsidiary
-Recoveries from
paid claims
-Balance due from
at year end
-Commissions

-Payment on
conunissions

-Expenses paid on
behalf of fellow
subsidiary

-(iross writien
premiums
-Payment received
from fellow
subsidiary
-Premium
refundable
-Claims for fellow
subsidiary
-Claims paid
-Balance due from
at year end

2014
SR

2013
SR

2014
SR

2013
SR

3,500

5,868

253,625

259,524

1,696,406

40,886,566
41,535,496

1,482,423

812,930

41,802

283,764

116,000
110,680

248,750

246,382

2,955,240

3,093,022

690,647

137,644

10,716,543

277,815

1,074,616

428,351

2,368

(108,640)

73,751,591

68,969,606

24



The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2014

10. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES {Continued)

Related parties Nature of Amouni of transaction for the
fransacrion year ended
31 December 3] December 3] December 3! December
2014 2043 2014 2013
SR SR SR SR

Bualance

Due to related parties
Medivisa K8A -Expenses paid on

{fellow subsidiary} behalf of fellow 224,675 10,251,925 - -
subsidiary
-Insurance
premium for
employees of
fellow subsidiary
-TPA fees 97,877,443 101,706,370 - -
-Expenses paid by
fellow subsidiary
on behalf of
Medgulf KSA
-Premium
refundable

-Payment on TPA
fees

2,798,068 2,462,173 -

37,800 124,134 - -

237,823 360,959 - -

77,158,828 118,000,000 - -

-Balance due to at i . 27,969,793 9,892,430
year end
Al Samiya Trading
Co ();‘el'.low -Commissions - 56,286,833 - -
subsidiary)
-Payment on
commissions
-Expenses paid on
behalf of fellow - 9,300,152 - -
subsidiary
-Gro;s written 1,101,895
premiums

-Payment received - 9,095 - -

-Premium
refundable
-Balance due to at 2,188,353
year end
Medivisa Jordan -5% Withholding
(fellow subsidiary) taxes paid on
behalf of Medgulf
KSA
-Balance due to at
vear end

- 44,885,518 - -

- 88,485 - -

78,268 85,645 - -

- - 208,761 130,493

28,178,554 12,211,276
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10. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Reiated parties

The Saudi
Investment Bank,
{(Founding
shareholders)

Al Istithmar
Capirtal (subsidiary
of SIB-founding
shareholders)

Bangue de Credit
National {Common
ownership and
directors)

Saudi Orix
(Shareholders of
the porent
comparny)

Creative solutions
restaurants Co,
(Under common
directorship)

Prime heaith
insurance {fellow
subsidiary)

Nature of
transaction

Amonnt of transaction for the
year ended

Balance

3! DBecember
2014
SR

31 December
2003
SR

31 Decemnber 37 December
2614 2013
SR SR

-Current account
and time deposits

-Statutory deposit
(refer note 10.1)

-Commission
income on time
deposits and
statutory deposit

7,456,557

1,073,452

-Gross written

premiums 3,857,584

-Premium
refundable

-Claims incurred
-Outstanding
claims pavable / -
recovery
-Discretionary
portfolio
arrangement
(refer 10.2)
-Current account
and time deposits
-Commission
income on time
deposits
-Investment in
Sukuk

-income on Sukuk
-(Gross written
premiums
-Premium
receivables

1,604,191

1,297,862

12,175,350

278,314

198,123
26,037,960

-Claims incurred 17,988,987

-Outstanding
claims payable / -
recovery

-(Gross written
premiums

-Premium
receivables

355,105

-Claims incurred 148,793

-Medical claim
administration
fees paid
-Medical claim
administration -
fees payables

229,048

1,198,124

20,870,556

218,650

3,570,224

1,008,741

2,083,031

9,911,827

114,857

199,543
18,504,838

12,548,074

323,285

148,024

9,873,242 2,416,685

107,382,259 106,308,807

(1,324,146) (778,825)

1,413 (149,634)

55,134,708 33,837,026

18,974 12,194,324

7,500,000 7,500,000

1,809,703 1,764,983

11,611 (202,304)

16,048 49,590

(177,335) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contirluﬁd)
For the Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2014

10. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES {Continued)

Natare of Amaunt of transaction for the

Related parties
fransaction yewr gnded Balance
31 December 31 Decembper 31 December 3! December
2014 2013 2014 2013
SR SR SR SR
Safari Group of  -Gross written
companies premiums 10,094,401 20,476,628 - -
{common -Premium
Directorship) refundable / - - (559,644) 7,231,789
receivables
-Claims incurred 14,513,708 13,162,177
-Claims payable - - (117,777 (538,883)
Khalid A. Al -Gross written
Shathry premiums 45,926 254,707 - -
Construction -Premium
Conmpany (Under receivables ) . 87,266 83,608
sommon -Claims incurred 271,296 130,736 - -
d;rec:tw:shrp) -Og’xtstandmg ) ) 150 6,599
claims
Khalid A. Al -Gross written
Shathr}’ premiums 49,035 471995 - -
{individual motor -Premium
policies) receivables - - 1,137,199 1,099,064
-Claims incurred 16,888 560 - -
-Qutstanding
claims - - 5,980 5,980
Al Jasamah -(Gross written
establishment premiums 148,013 136,580 . .
(Under commonr  -Premiom ) 2343
directorship) receivables ) ) ’
-Claims incurred 44,978 128,325 - -
-Outstanding .
claims - - {8,061) (35,372)
Medgulf BSC -Reinsurance
(parent company) premiums ceded,
claim recoveries et o A P )
and reinsurance 46,588,188 66,690,652 -
commission
income
-Receivables /
(payables) - - 40,413,700 (6,174,488)
Addison Bradley  -Reinsurance
Overseas (fellow  premiums ceded 1,416,985 ) ) )
subsidia _Rei
£ Reinsurance ; ; 39,341,559 40,758,544
receivables
Addison Bradley  -Reinsurance 151291 ) ) )
Arabia Holding  broker commission ’
LLC (UAE) -Reinsurance clai
(Feliow . m - - 2,690,538 2,539,247
subsidiary) recoveries
S1B LLC (UAE)
(ellow -Balance due 1o at ) ) (31,472) (31,472)
o year end
subsidiery)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2014

10. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES {Continued)

Related parties Nature of Amount of fransaction for the

b Balance
fransaction year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 204 2013
SR SR SR SR
Addison Bradley -Brokerage
Arabia- KSA — commission 24,953 306,234 - -
Brokerage R
commission Payment (o 18,273 162,629 ; .
o fellow subsidiary
(fellow subsidiary) -Payment recejved
from fellow 818 S00 - -
subsidiary
-Gross written
premiums to 2,716 1,260 - -
fellow subsidiary
-Premium
refindable by - 360 - -
fellow subsidiary
Addison Bradley  -Reinsurance
Arabia- KSA - premiums ceded 546,377 22,332,372 } }
reinsurance broker -Payment on
(fellow subsidiary)  ceded premiums 38,054 46,486,020 ) )
-Ceded premiums
refundable 13,906 15,829,907 - -
Reinsurance 12,964,148 1,992,858 . :
claim recoveries
Addison Bradley  -Reinsurance
Arabia-KSA receivables / - - 3,487,268 (8,990,108)
(fellow subsidiary) {payables)
“Pretmium - - 1,405,848 1,410,622
receivables
Emad J. Baban -Gross written
(individual motor  premiums 24178 21,183 - -
olicies o
s cf?trfr)f Claims incurred 3,014 9,462 - -
-Outstanding ) ) (6,782)
claims ) '
Saleh Al-Sagri <Gross written
ﬁ"ﬁ""_‘idujf molor  premiums 65,369 13,644 - '
PORCIES o, -Premium
Director) receivables - - 70,759 -
-Claims incurred 25,360 140 - -
-Outstanding
claims ) ) (21,834) )
Mohamad B. El-  _Gross written 2 607 i
Zein (individual premiums - ’ -
motor policies of Bremi
Director, -fremium - - -
/ refundable (528)

10.1 Statutory deposit has been placed with the Saudi Investment Bank at the commission rate of 0.7% per annurm.

10.2 Discretionary portfolio management agreement (DPM) was signed on February 11, 201 | and includes a mix
of equity and debt investments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2014

10, TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
Compensation of key management personnel

(b6} The remuneration of the Board of Directors and other key management personnel during the year is as Sollows:

2614 2613
SR SR
Short-term benefits 20,460,128 20,221,453
End of service benefits 393,689 596,844
20,853,817 20,818,297
11, CLAIMS
a) Outstanding Claims and IBNR
2014 2013
Reinsurers’ Reinsurers’
Gross share Ner Gross share Net
SR Y4 SR SE SR SR

QOutstanding at end of the
year 797,460,689 (515,992,631) 281,408,058 965,222,932 (468,830,982) 496,391,950
Incurred but not reported 482,032,326 (135,686,604) 346,345,722 493,010,360 (136,856,183) 356,154,177

1,279,433,015 (651,679,235) 627,753,780 1,458,233,292 (605,687,165) 852,546,127

Claims paid during the year 3,541,412,022 (694,946,433) 2,846,465,589 2,704,174,962 (537,901,527) 2,166,273,435

Qutstanding at beginning of
the year 965,222,932 (468,830,982) 496,391,950 748,083,907 (47 0,927,759) 277,156,148
Incurred but not reported 493,010,360 (136,856,183) 356,154,177 236,622,578 (126,43 1,736) 110,190,842

1,458,233,292 (605,687,165) 852,546,127 977,706,485 (597,359,495 387,346,990

Claims incurred 3,362,611,745 (740,938,503) 2,621,673,242 3,178,374,391 (546,229,197) 2,631472,572

b) Claims Triangulation Analysis by Accident Year

The Company maintains adequate reserves in respect of its {nsurance business in order to protect against adverse
future claims experience and developments. As claims develop and the ultimate cost of claims becomes more
certain, adverse claims experiences will be efiminated which results in the release of reserves from earlier accident
years. In order to maintain adequate reserves, the Company transfers much of this release to the current accident
year reserves when the development of claims is less mature and there is much greater uncertainty attached to the
ultimate cost of claims.

Claims triangulation analysis is by accident years spanning a number of financial years.
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11. CLAIMS (Continued)
b) Claims Triangulation Analysis by Accident Year (Continued)

i) On Gross Basis

Accident

v 2009 20140 2011 2012 2013
ear
At the end of
accident year  1,148,964.653  1,525,392,055 1,759,169,129  2,030,374,787  2,865,129,379
One year
later 1,166,830,952  1,538,464,663  1,887,695,642 2.355,342,250  3,006,147.442
Two years _
later 1,165,977,189  1,509,521,001 1,967,918,830 2,319,793,698
Three years } i
later 1,145,561.660  1,537,637,551  1.950,794,779
Four years _ ) .
later 1,281,007,248  1,537,201,085
Five years i . _
later 1,257,000,052 )
Litiimate
paidclaims  1,257,000,052 1,537,201,085  1,950,794,779  2,319,793.698  3,006,147,442
{estimated)
Cumulative
paidclaims  1.163,139.839  1,517.572,820 1.926,513,401  2,282.009,419 2.826,915,902
Qutstanding
claims + 91,860.213 19,628,263 24,281,378 37,784,279 179,231,540
TBNR
il On net Basis (net of reinsurgnce)
Accident 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Year
At the end of
accidentyear 001986350 872,154,905  1,032,598331 1,118997.831 1.437,617,189
g:‘; year 962,313,336 1,230,576,078 1,472,573271 1,767.464,715 2,299.915,839
]2;‘;‘; Y 076888381 1,253,008621  1.500,726,580 1,790,732,973 -
LATeE YRS 970244200 1,256,681.050 1,505,276,585 - -
FOUTYears  990249,058  1,258,037,464 . . -
later
FIveYeals 580,674,481 - : - -
later
Ulthnate
paid claims 980.674,481  1,258,037.464 1,505,276,585 1.790,732,973  2,299,915,830
{estimated)
Cumulative )
paid claims 978,294,728 1,258,319.838  1,501,739,620 1,787,051,932 2,293,166,833
Ouistanding
claims + 2,379,753 (282,374) 3,536,665 3,681,041 6,749,006
IBNR

12. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Investment in an associate comprises of an equity investment in Al-Waseel for Electr
6,000,000 (a 25% equity interest) (2013: R 6,000,000}, in an unquoted company (the ©

Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

2014

3,196,138,714

3,196,138,714

2,278,623,272

917,515,442

2014

2,459,547,612

2,459.547,612

1,834,950,12]

604,557,491

TOTAL

13,267,075,770

11,994,774,633

1,272,301,117

TOTAL

10,294,184,954

9,673,563,072

620,621,882

onic amounting to SR
associate”), registered in the
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Ccmtinued)
For the Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2014

13. INVESTMENTS

Investments are classified as set out below:

{u) Insurance Operations - Availabie Jor sale investments
2014
Quoted Unguoted Total
SR SR SR
Mutual funds 32,764,819 - 32,764,819
Bonds 38,027,812 - 38,027,812
Sukuk - 25,000,000 25,000,000
Equities 1,939,915 - 1,935,915
Total 72,732,546 25,600,000 97,732,546
2013
Quoted Unguoted Toral
SR SR SR
Mutual funds 52,341,125 - 52,341,123
Bonds 38,533,875 - 38,533,875
Total 96,875,000 - 90,875,000

The available for sale investments comprise of mutual funds, bonds, sukuk and equities issued by corporate and
financial institutions in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The cumulative change in fair values of available for sale investments for insurance operations amounting to
SR 1,844,387 (31 December 2013 SR 1,619,491) is presented within insurance operations’ surplus’ in the
statement of financial position.

The movements during the year in available for sale investments for insurance’s operations were as follows:

2014 2013
SR SR
At the beginning of the year 90,875,000 110,373,947
Purchase during the year 26,632,650 -
Sold during the year (28,000,000) (20,000,000)
97,507,650 90,373,547
Net change in fair values 224,896 501,053
At the end of the year 87,732,546 90,875,000
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The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2014

13. INVESTMENTS (Continued)

(h) Shareholders’ Operntions - Available for sale investments
2014
Quoted Unguoted Tota!
SR SR SR
Mutual funds 81,619,836 7,680,000 89,299,836
Bonds 78,713,608 19,081,875 97,795,483
Sukuk 17,585,500 40,995,980 58,581,480
Equities 22,815,525 1,923,078 24,738,603
Total 200,734,469 69,680,933 270,415,402
2013
Guoted Unguoted Total
SR SR SR
Mutual funds 78,618,467 7,530,000 86,148,467
Bonds 36,539,925 - 36,539,925
Sukuk 28,693,160 40,995,500 69,688,660
Equities - 18,750,000 18,750,000
Total 143,851,552 67,275,500 211,127,052

The available for sale investments comprise of mutual funds, bonds, sukuk and equities issued by corporate and
financial institutions in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The company has invested SR 10,465,653 outside the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

The cumulative change in fair values of available for sale investments for shareholders’ operations amounting to
SR 9,945,494 (31 December 2013: SR 16,254,049) is presented within shareholders’ equity in the statement of
financial position.

The movements during the year in available for sale investments for shareholders’ operations were as follows:

2014 2013

SR SR
At the beginning of the year 214,127,052 196,858,681
Purchased during the year 122,627,339 29,972,505
Sold during the year {56,009,319) (22,512,592}

277,745,072 204,318,594

Realised loss (1,021,115 (162,308}
Net change in fair values (6,308,555} 6,970,766
At the end of the year 270,415,402 211,127,052
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For the Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2014

13. INVESTMENTS (Continued)

(C) Insnrance and Shareholders’ Operations - Available Jor sale investments

L. The analysis of investments of insurance and shareholders’ operations by counterparties is as follows:

2014 2043

SR SR
Government and quasi government 69,817,232 46,542,426
Banks & other financial institutions 252,244 948 214,953,029
Corporates 46,085,768 40,506,597
Total 368,147,948 302,002,652
ii.  The credit quality of investment portfolio is as follows:

2014 2013

SR SR
AA-To AAA 88,716,107 57,606,885
A-To A+ 208,259,442 185,218,607
BB- To BB+ 7,500,000 7,500,000
B- To B+ 1,300,800 -
NA 62,371,599 51,676,560
Total 368,147,948 302,002,052
Credit ratings are based on Standard and Poor, Fitch and Moody’s rating methodology or the issuer, noting that

“NA” represents the sum of the investments which are not rated.

ili.,  Fair value

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in
the principal (or the most advantageous) market between market participants at the measurement date under current
market conditions regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. The fair values of recognised financial instruments are not significantly different from the carrying values
included in the financial statements. The estimated fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted market

prices, when available. The fair values of these investments are disclosed below.

Determination of fair value and fuir value b ferarely

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level I:  Quoted prices in active markets for the same instrument {i.e. without modification or repacking).

Level2:  Quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities or other valuation techniques for which

all significant inputs are based on observable market data,

Level3:  Valuation techniques for which any significant input is not based on observable market data.
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I3, INVESTMENTS (Continued)

iv. The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value
hierarchy:

2014
Level 1 Levei 2 Level 3 Toral
SR Sk SR SR
Available for sale investments
Mutual Funds 114,384,653 7,680,000 - 122,064,655
Bonds 5,997,508 125,825,795 - 135,823,295
Sukuk 17,585,500 65,995,980 - 83,581,480
Eguities 24,755,440 - - 24,755,440
Total available for sale investments 166,723,095 199,501,775 - 366,224,870
2013
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
SR SR SR SR
Available for sale investments
Mutual Funds 130,959,592 7,530,000 - 138,489,592
Bonds 75,073,800 - - 75,073,800
Sukuk 28,693,160 40,995,500 - 69,688,660
Total available for sale investments 234,726,552 48,525,500 283,252,052

The unlisted security amounting to SR 1,923,078 (2013: SR 18,750,000) was stated at cost in the absence of active
markets or other means of reliably measuring their fair value.

14. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS

2014 2013
Insurance Srarelolders’ Insurance Shareholders’
Operations Operationy Operations Operations
SR SE SR SR
Advances to employees 8,566,528 - 7,933,707 -
Prepaid expenses 4,125,913 - 1,085,158 -
Prepayment on hospital dues - - 89,490,917 -
Advances to suppliers 7,552,910 - 12,804,735 -
Prepaid rem 3,814,168 - 3,507,147 -
Accrued special commission income 1,088,706 1,678,647 1,243,534 2,787,249
Others 2,064,296 - 2,030,950 -
27,212,821 1,678,647 118,096,148 2,787,249

34



The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
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IS. MOVEMENT IN UNEARNED PREMIUMS

2014 2013
Reinsurers® Reinsurers’
Gross shaore Net Gross share Ner
XR SR SR SR SR SR
At the beginning of the
vear 2,298,631,011  (919,402,928) 1,379 228,083 1.7 18,652,217 (634,044,489)  1,084,607,728
Premiums written
during the year 4,415,993,030 (1,217,946,137) 3,198,046,893 4,137,512,368 (1,245,243,602) 2,892,268,766
Premiums earned during
the year (4,230,884,963)  1,103,697,647 (3,127,187,316) (3,557,533,574) 959,885,163 (2,597,648,411)

Atthe end of the year  2,483,739,078 (1,033,651,418) 1,450,087,660 2,298,631,011  {919,4062,928)  1,379,228,083

16. DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS

2014 2013

SR SR
At the beginning of the year 174,854,095 35,018,105
Costs incurred during the year 188,322,911 260,785,724
Amortised during the year (162,690,998) (120,949,734)
At the end of the year 200,486,008 174,854,095

Commissions, SAMA fees, CCHI fees, TPA fees, pattial administration cost (related to underwriting and issue of
policy), unearned portion of stamp charges (excluding motor business) are included in the deferred policy
acquisition costs.
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17. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Office
equipment,
Leaselrold  furniture and
improvements  fixtures Computers  Motor veliicles Total
SR SR SR SR SR
Cost:
1 January 2013 24,498,546 20,335,885 14,050,972 4,088,717 62,978,120
Additions 281,914 781,718 16,443,100 661,000 18,167,732
Disposals - (371,608) (674,933) (863,431) (1,908,972
31 December 2013 24,780,460 20,749,995 29,819,139 3,886,286 79,235,880
Additions 6,952,955 3,914,069 11,206,737 128,000 22,201,761
Disposals - (768,589) (32,901) - (801,490)
31 December 2014 31,733,415 23,895,475 40,992,975 4,014,286 100,636,151
Accammulated depreciation:
I January 2013 16,434,510 6,094,047 6,461,037 1,764,023 30,753,617
Provided during the year 3,113,205 2,785,377 3,587,339 1,007,273 10,493,194
Disposals - (329,603) {667,601) (600,501) (1,597,70%)
31 December 2013 19,547,715 8,549,821 9,380,775 2,176,795 39,649,106
Provided during the year 2,792,164 2,926,542 3,421,715 899,110 10,039,531
Disposals - (583,564) {32,901) - (616,465)
31 December 2014 22,339,879 10,892,799 12,769,589 3,069,905 49,072,172
Net book value:
31 December 2014 9,393,536 13,002,676 28,223,386 944,381 51,563,979
31 December 2013 5,232,745 12,200,174 20,438,364 1,715,491 39,586,774

18. STATUTORY DEPOSIT

Statutory deposit represents 10% of the paid-up capital which is maintained in accordance with the Law on
Supervision of Cooperative Insurance Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. This statutory deposit cannot be
withdrawn without the consent of SAMA.

19. GOODWILL

The Company commenced its insurance operations on | January 2009. In 2009, the Company entered into an
agreement {“the agreement”) for the purchase of insurance portfolio and the related net assets and labilities of the
Saudi Arabian Operations of the Mediterranean and Gulf Insurance and Reinsurance Company (MEDGULF)
B.8.C. (closed). The Company held an ordinary general assembly meeting on 22 December 2008 and approved the
purchase of the insurance portfolio and the related net assets and liabilities of the Saudi Arabian Operations of the
Mediterranean and Gulf Insurance and Reinsurance Company (MEDGULF) B.8.C. (closed) effective | January
2009. This acquisition resulted in goodwill of SR 480,000,000.

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated, Recoverable amount was determined ot the basis of fair value less cost
to sell,
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19. GOODWILL (Continued)

The Fair Value less cost to sell (“FVLCTS”) is used to conclude on the impairment assessment. The valuation result
has determined that carrying amounts of goodwill is less than its recoverable amount,

Fair Value analysis is based on the “Market Approach” where trading activity of Medguif's stock and the
capitalisation of earnings using value metrics of broadly comparable listed companies and Mergers and
Acquisitions transaction multiples were considered up to the valuation date.

The budgeted annual growth rate for gross premiums to be written over the next three years to be in the range of 9%
to 14%.

As per management’s assessment, the Company’s track record supports the assumptions used in the impairment
testing,

20. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

2014 2013
Insnrance Shareholders Insurance Shareholders
Operations Operatinns Operations Operations
SR SR SR SR
Employees® end of service benefits (note 21) 36,945,296 - 33,863,687 “
Accrued CCHI fees 29,739,476 - 30,110,038 “
Payable to suppliers 6,947,736 - 8,475,299 -
Accrued expenses 4,252,178 1,549,000 5,542,592 899,500
Other payables 360,601 842,777 866,774 -
78,245,287 2,391,777 78,858,790 £99,500
21. EMPLOYEES' END OF SERVICE BENEFITS
2014 2013
SR SR
At the beginning of the year 33,863,687 25,767,309
Charged during the year (note 23) 6,088,507 10,144,510
Paid during the year (3,007,298) (2,048,132}
At the end of the year (note 20) 36,945,296 33,863,687
22. UNEARNED REINSURANCE COMMISSION
2014 2013
SR SR
At the beginning of the vear 39,772 672 49,901,488
Commission received during the year 112,278,591 98,089 544
Commission earned during the year (78,593,396) (108,218,360)
At the end of the year 73,457 867 39,772,672
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23. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2014 2013
Insurance Shareholders’ Insurance Shareholders’
Operations Operations Cperations Operations
SR SR SR SR
Employee salaries and costs 153,102,452 - 120,096,642 -
Supervision and inspection fees - CCHI 30,756,075 - 15,999,389 -
Rent 21,188,893 - 19,199,593 -
Supervision and inspection fees - SAMA 20,838,549 - 9,394,670 -
Professional fees 11,271,422 480,250 5,411,510 660,050
Depreciation 10,039,531 - 9,061,038 -
Employees’ end of service benefits (note 21 6,088,907 - 10,144,510 -
Stationery 5,749,851 37,500 4,148913 72,948
Withholding taxes on reinsurance payments 5,523,159 - 6,582,828 -
Repair and maintenance 5,398,318 - 3,331,615 -
Promotion and advertising 3,360,108 3,200 3,860,266 54,570
Business travel and transport 3,068,211 71,328 2,482,475 31,398
Uslities 1,323,002 - 846,386 -
Board of Directors and other committees
remunerations and expenses - 2,770,100 - 2,190,000
Others 13,017,480 220,161 19,252,015 8,456,284
290,726,088 3,582,539 233,812,050 11,465,250
24. OTHER INCOME
2014 2013
SR SR
Income from hospitals for prompt settlement of claims 42,822,910 34,758,400
Others 28,552,431 41,417,237

25. ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX

a)  Zakat charge for the year

71,375,341

76,175,637

The zakat charge for the year consists of the current year’s charge amounting to SR 7,637,368 (2013: SR

4,730,853).

The zakat provision is based on the following:

2014
SR
Share capital 1,800,000,008 1,000,000,000
Opening provisions and other adjustments 330,513,787 46,230,376
Book value of Jong term assets (769,973,064) (699,011,697)
Zakat base 560,540,723 347,218,679
Saudi shareliolders’ share of zakat base 305,494,694 189,234,180

38



The Mediterranean and Gulf Cooperative Insurance and Reinsurance Company
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
For the Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2014

25. ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX (Continued)

The differences between the financial and the zakatable results are mainly due to provisions which are not included
in the calculation of zakat table income.

b) Income tax charge for the year

Income tax relating to the non Saudi sharcholders in 2014 amounting to SR 11,869,256 consists of the 2014 year
charge, which has been provided for based on the estimated taxable profit at 45.5%. There was no income tax in
2613 due to the losses incurred.

€) Movement in the provision for zakat and income tax during the year

The movement in the provision for zakat and income tax for the year was as follows:

2014 2013
SR SR
At the beginning of the year 12,453,909 45,800,704
Charge during the year (1) 7,082,715 4,730,853
Payments in advance - (7,641,020)
Payments during the year - (30,436,628)
At the end of the year 19,506,624 12,453,909

(1) Zakat and income tax charge for the year is SR 19,506,624. The company had an extra provision of SR
12,453,909 as at 31 December 2013. An amount of S8R 7,052,715 has been charged in the statement of
comprehensive income to meet the required provision as at 31 December 2014,

d) Status of zakat and tax assessments

The Company has filed its zakat and income tax declarations for the period from 16 April 2007 to 31 December
2013 with the Department of Zakat and Income Tax (DZIT) and the assessments of the same years have not been
completed yet. The DZIT has disallowed a deduction of statutory deposit for the year 2012 and this matter led to a
Zakat difference amounting to SR 1.19 million. The company has already made the payment and submitted an
appeal for this matter,

26. SHARE CAPITAL

The authorized and paid up share capital of the Company is SR 1,000 million divided into 100 million shares of
SR 10 each (2013: SR 1,000 million divided into 100 million shares of SR 10 each) . The founding shareholders of
the Company have subscribed and paid for 75 million shares (SR 750 million) with a nominal value of SR 10 each,
which represent 75% of the shares of the Company and the remaining 25 million shares (SR 250 miflion) with a
nominal value of SR 10 each which represent 25% of the shares of the Company, have been subscribed by the
general public.

27. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS / (LOSSES) PER SHARE

Basic and diluted carnings / (losses) per share for the year was calculated by dividing the net income for the year
by the weighted average number of shares issued and outstanding during the year amounting to 100 million shares.

28. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial assets and liabilities include cash and cash equivalents, time deposits, investments, receivables, payables,

and certain other assets and liabilities, The fair values of the financial assets and labilities are not materially
different from their carrying values with the exception of unquoted financial instruments which are carried at cost.
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29. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

i) Legal proceedings
The Company operates in the insurance industry and is subject to legal proceedings in the normal course of
business. While it is not practicable to forecast or determine the final results of all pending or threatened
legal proceedings, management does not believe that such proceedings (including litigations) will have a
material effect on its results and financial position,

L)) Operating fease commitments
The minimum future lease payments for the use of the Company office premises are as follows:
2014 2013
SR SR
Less than one year - -
One to five years 20,585,150 22,234,215

20,585,150 22,234,215

o) Coutingencies and capital commitments
As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s banker has issued letters of guarantee of SR 15,024,955 (2013:
SR 7,050,489} to various customers, motor agencies and workshops as per the terms of the agreements
with them (note 7}. The Company had no capital commitments in 2014 (2013 nil).

30. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Consistent with the Company’s internal reporting process, operating segments have been approved by Management
in respect of the Company's activities, assets and Habilities as set out below.

Segment results do not include allocation of general and administration expenses, special commission income and
other income to operating segments.

Segment assets do not include allocation of cash and cash equivalents, time deposits investments, premiums and
reinsurance balances receivable, prepayments and other assets, due from related parties, and property and
equipment, net, to the operating segments.

Segment liabilities do not include allocation of accounts and commission payable, reinsurance balances payable,
accrued expenses and other liabilities, due to shareholders’ operations, surplus distribution payable and other
reserves to operating segments.
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30. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)

Operating segments

For the year ended 31 December 2014
Insuranee operations

(Gross premiums written

Net premiums written

Net premiums earmned

Net ciaims incurred

Policy acquisition costs

Reinsurance commiission income

Net underwriting result

General and administrative expenses

Special commission income and other
income

Insurance operations’ surplus

For the year ended 31 December 2013
Insurance operations

Gross premiums written

Net premiums written

Net premiums earned

Net claims incurred

Policy acquisition costs

Reinsurance commission income

Net underwriting result

General and administrative cxpenses

Special commission income and other
income

Insurance operations' deficit

Medical Motor Others Fotal
SR SR SR SR
2,973,946,998 685,938,313 756,107,719 4,415,993 ,630
2,527,956,673 574,760,362 95,329,858  3,198,046,893
2,571,315,949 464,754,363 91,117,004  3,127,187,316
(2,204,605,385)  (398,054,245)  (19,013,612) (2,621,673,242)
(110,049,067)  (27,422,469)  (25,219,462)  (162,690.998)
23,999,752 18,473,381 44,120,263 78,593,396
280,661,249 49,781,030 91,004,193 421,416,472
(290,726,088)
79,263,066
209,953,450
Medical Motor Others Total
SR SR SR SR
3,010,993,691 394,001,233 732,517,444  4,137,512,368
2,453,077,394 342,756,448 96,434,926  2,892,268,766
2,228,107,553 287,390,263 82,150,595 2,597,648,411
(2,386,078,573)  (232211,612)  (13,182,387) (2.631,472,572)
{66,855,113) (26,392,961 (27,501,660) (120,949,734)
45,164,905 8,228,388 54,825,067 108,218,360
(179,661,228) 36,814,078 96,291,615 (46,555,535)

(233,812,050)

82,432,173

(197,935,412)

R I e
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30. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Centinued)

Operating segments (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014

Insurance operations’ assety
Reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims
Deferred policy acquisition costs
Unallocated assets

Iusurance operations® liabilities and
surpius

Gross unearned premiums

Unearned reinsurance commission
Gross outstanding claims
Unallocated ligbilities

As at 31 December 2013

Insurance operations’ assets
Reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims
Deferred policy acquisition costs
Unallocated assets

Insurance operations’ liabilities and
surplus

Gross unearned premiums

Unearned reinsurance commission
Gross outstanding claims
Unallocated liabilities

(Continued)
Medicul Motor Others Total

SR SR SR SR
199,407,761 61,598,321 772,645,336  1,033,651,418
99,855,122 43,776,078 508,048,035 651,679,238
156,856,792 12,506,742 31,122,474 200,486,008
- - - 2,491,499,650
4,377.316,311
s
1,329,385,070 307,991,603 846,362,405  2,483,739,078
20,609,453 8,112,774 44,735,640 73,457,867
622,120,487 114,966,245 535,214,385  1.272.301,117
. - - 547.818,249
4,377,316,311

T i TSR
Medicnl Motor Others Total

SR SR SR SR
242,708,330 24,749,519 651,945,079 919,402,928
168,344,497 22,158,634 415,184,034 605,687,165
142,318,219 5,371,905 27,163,971 174,854,095
- - - 2,642,695 166
4,342,639,354
1.416,044,915 161,136,803 721,449,292 2,298,631 ,011
- 557,769 39,214,903 39,772,672
913,459,113 99,791,953 438,654,648  1,451,905914
- - - 552,329,757

4,342,639,354
fomi et m s i
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31, RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk governance

The Company’s risk governance is manifested in a set of established policies, procedures and controls which uses
the existing organisational structure to meet strategic targets. The Company’s philosophy revolves on willing and
knowledgeable risk acceptance commensurate with the risk appetite and strategic plan approved by the Board. The
Company is exposed to insurance, reinsurance, regulatory framework, credit, liquidity, foreign currency,
commission rate, and market risks.

Risk management structure
A cohesive organisational structure is established within the Company in order to identify, assess, monitor, and
control risks.

Board of Directors
The apex of risk governance is the centralised oversight of Board of Directors providing direction and the necessary
approvals of strategies and policies in order to achieve defined corporate goals.

Senior management
Senior management is responsible for the day to day operations towards achieving the strategic goals within the
Company'’s pre-defined risk appetite.

Audit Committee and Internal Audit Department

Risk management processes throughout the Company are audited annually by the Internal Audit Department which
examines both the adequacy of the procedures and the Company's compliance with such procedures. The lnternal
Audit Department discusses the results of all assessments with senior manhagement, and reports its findings and
recommendations directly to the Audit Committee.

The risks faced by the Company and the manner in which these risks are mitigated by management are set out
below:

a) Insurance risk

Insurance risk is the risk that actual claims payable to contract holders in respect of insured events exceed the
carrying amount of insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency or amounts of claims severity,
actual benefits paid and subsequent development of fong term claims are different than expected. Therefore the
objective of the Company is to ensure that sufficient resources are available to cover these liabilities. The insurance
risk arising from insurance contracts is mainly concentrated in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

Freguency and amounts of claims

The frequency and amounts of c¢laims can be affected by several factors. The Company underwrites mainly motor
and medical risks. These are regarded as short-term insurance contracts as claims are normally advised and settled
within one year of the insured event taking place. This helps to mitigate insurance risk.

Motor

For motor contracts the main risks are claims for death and bodily injury and the replacement or repair of vehicles.
In recent years, the Company has only underwritten comprehensive polices for owner/drivers over 18 years of age,
Substantially all of the motor contracts relate to private individuals. The Company also has risk management
procedures to control cost of claims. The Company has reinsurance cover to Jimit the lasses for any individual claim
to SR 937,500 (31 December 2013: SR 937,500)

Medical

The Company’s underwriting strategy is designed to ensure that risks are well diversified in terms of type of risk
and fevel of insured benefits, This is largely achieved through diversification across the industry sectors and
geography, the use of medical screening in order to ensure that pricing takes account of current health conditions,
regular view of actual claims experience and product pricing, as well as detailed claims handling procedures. The
Company further enforces a policy of actively managing and promptly pursuing of claims, in order to reduce its
exposure to unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the Company. The Company has a quota-
share freaty ceding 15% of its risks.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Coniinued)
a) Insurance risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

'The Company believes that the claim liabilities under insurance contracts outstanding at the year end are adequate.
However, these amounts are not certain and actual payments may differ from the claims liabilities provided in the
financial statements. The insurance claim liabilities are sensitive 1o the various assumptions. It has not been possible
to quantify the sensitivity of specific variable such as legislative changes or uncertainty in the estimation process.
The general insurance claims provision is sensitive to the above key assumptions. A hypothetical 10% change in the
claims ratio would impact income by approximately SR 9,835,652 (31 December 2013: SR 10,110,393) annually in

aggregate.
b) Reinsurance risk

In common with other insurance companies, in order to minimize financial exposure arising from large claims, the
Company, in the normal course of business, enters into agreements with other parties for reinsurance purposes.
Such reinsurance arrangements provide for greater diversification of business, allow management to control
exposure to potential losses arising from large risks, and provide additional capacity for growth. A significant
portion of the reinsurance is affected under treaty, facultative and excess of loss reinsurance contracts,

To minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial
condition of its reinsurers and monitors the concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions,
activities and economic characteristics of reinsurers.

Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations to the policyhelders and as a result the
Company remains liable for a portion of outstanding claims reinsured to the extent that the reinsurer fails to meet
the obligations under the reinsurance agreements. The credit exposure in this connection is:

2014 2013
SR SR
Middle East 132,289,708 90,853,075
Europe 519,389,327 514,834,090
651,679,235 605,687,165
e

c) Regulatory framework risk

The operations of the Company are subject to local regulatory requirements in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Such
regulations not only prescribe approval and monitoring of activities but also impose certain restrictive provisions
e.g. capital adequacy to minimize the risk of default and insolvency on the part of the insurance companies and to
enable them to meet unforeseen liabilities as these arise.
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3L RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
d) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrumert will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss. For all classes of financial assets held by the Company, the maximum exposure to
credit risk to the Company is the cartying value as disclosed in the statement of financial position.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company's exposure to credit risk:

» The Company only cnters into insurance and reinsurance contracts with recognised, creditworthy third
parties. It is the Company’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivables from insurance and reinsurance contracts are monitored on
an ongoing basis in order to reduce the Company’s exposure fo bad debts,

] The Company seeks to limit credit risk with respect to agents and brokers by setting credit limits for
individual agents and brokers and monitoring outstanding receivables.

. The Company investment portfolio is managed by the investment officer in accordance with the
investment policy established by the investment committee. '

. The Company, with respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets, is restricted to commercial
banks having strong financial positions and credit ratings,

. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Company.

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of financial
position:

20614 2013
Insurance  Shareholders®  Insurance  Shareholders’
Operations Operations Operations Operations
SR SR SR SR
Bank balances and cash 688,436,434 241,618,786 686,260,377 315,793,912
Time deposits 227,222,265 - 129,639,726 126,149,039
Investments 97,732,546 270,415,402 90,875,000 211,127,052
Statutory deposit - 107,382,259 - 106,308,807
Premiums and reinsurance balances receivable 1,325,049,622 - 1,240,053,958 -
Advances to employees 8,566,528 - 7,933,767 -
Advances to suppliers 7,552,910 - 12,804,735 -
Accrued special commission income 1,088,706 1,678,647 1,243,534 2,787,249
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims 651,679,235 - 605,687,165 -
Due from related parties 73,751,591 - 68,969,606 -
3,081,079,837 621,095,094 2,843 467,808 762,166,059
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€

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Compan
monthly basis and management ensures t

RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liquidity risk

local banks.
Maturity profiles

Unearned premiums and reinsurers’ share of unearned
profile of the non-derivative financial liabilities of the

INSURANCE OPERATIONS’ FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Gross outstanding claims

Accounts and commission payable
Reinsurance balances payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Surplus distribution payable

SHAREHOLDERS’ FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Accrued expenses and other labilities

Provision for zakat and income tax

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Liguidity profile

None of the financial liabilities on the statement of fi
between contractual and expected maturity of the no

MENTS (Continued)

y will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with
hat sufficient liquid funds are available to meet any commitments as they arise. A

financial liabilities. Liquidity requirements are monitored on a
significant amount of funds are invested in time deposits with

premiums have been excluded from the analysis as they are not contractusl obligations, The table below summarises the maturity
Company based on remaining expected undiscounted contractual obligations:
2014 2013
Up to More than Up to More than
one year one year Total one year one year Total
SR SR SR 5R SR SR
1,074,758,205 197,542,912 1,272,361,117 1,300,225,856 151,680,058 1,451,903,914
180,814,057 - 180,814,057 73,314,933 - 73,314,933
84,139,436 - 84,139,436 294,402,083 - 294,402,083
78,245,287 - 78,245,287 78,858,790 - 78,858,790
20,995,345 85,595,806 106,591,151 - 85,595,806 85,595,806
1,438,952 330 283,138,718 1,722,091,048 1,746,801,662 237,275,864 1,984,077,526
2,391,777 - 2,391,777 §99 500 - 899,300
19,506,624 - 19,506,624 4,730,853 7,723,056 12,453,909
21,898,401 - 21,898,401 5,630,353 7,723,056 13,353,409
1,460,850,731 283,138,718 1,743,989,449 1,752,432,015 244,998,920 1,997,430,935

nancial position are based on discounted cash flows a
n derivative financial liabilities of the Company.

nd are all payable on a basis as set out above. There are no differences
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31 RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)

f) Foreign currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of 2 financial instru
Management believes that there is minimal risk of signific

ment will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange ra
ant losses due to exchange rate fluctuations and conseque

tes. The Company principal transactions are carried out in Saudi Riyal.
ntly the Company does not hedge its foreign currency exposure.

2013
Saudi Rivals US Dollar Others Toral Saudi Rivals US Dollar Others Total
SR SR SR SR SR SR SR SR
INSURANCE QPERATIONS? ASSETS
Bank balances and cash 626,694,828 62,272,298 - 688,967,126 576,197,306 110,397,664 - 686,594,970
Time deposits 227,222,265 - - 227,222,265 129,639,726 - - 129,639,726
Premiums and reinsurance balances receivable 1,199,316,547 118,099,060 7,634,015 1,325,049,622 1,037,496,469 200,389,034 2,168,455 1,240,053,958
Due from related parties 73,751,591 - - 73,751,591 68,969,606 - - 68,969,606
Due from shareholders® operations - - - . 268,878,984 - - 268,878,984
Retnsurers’ share of outstanding claims 594,595,128 56,923,322 160,785 651,679,235 605,687,165 - - 605,687,165
Investments 59,704,733 38,027,813 - 97,732,546 52,341,125 38,533,875 - 90,875,000
Prepaymenis and other assets 27,043,771 168,730 - 27,212,521 117,728,531 367,617 - 118,096,148
Reinsurers’ share of uneamed premium 1,633,651,418 - - 1,033,651,418 919,402,928 - - 919,402,928
Deferred policy acquisition costs 200,486,008 - - 200,486,008 174,854,095 - - 174,854,095
Property and equipment, net 51,563,979 - - 51,563,979 39,586,774 - - 39,586,774
TOTAL INSURANCE OPERATIONS’
ASSETS 4,094,630,268 275,491,243 7,794,800 4,377,316,311 3,990,782,709 349,688,190 2,168,455 4,342,639,354
SHAREHOLDERS' ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 224,865,001 11,750,363 3422 241,618,786 105,327,900 210,462,590 3,422 315793912
Time deposits - - - - 66,805,289 59,343,750 - 126,149,039
Due from insurance operations 60,873,479 - - 60,873,479 - - - -
Investment in an associate 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
Investments 151,749,394 118,666,008 - 270,415,402 136,229,443 74,897,609 - 211,127,052
Prepayments and other assets 236,156 1,442 491 - 1,678,647 926,395 1,860,854 - 2,787,249
Land 30,000,000 - - 30,800,008 30,000,000 - - 30,000,000
Statutory deposit 107,382,259 § . 107,382,259 106,308,807 - - 106,308,807
Goodwill 480,000,000 - - 480,000,000 480,000,000 - - 480,000,000
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS® ASSETS 1,066,106,289 131,858,862 3,422 1,197,968,573 931,597,834 346,564,803 3,422 1,278,166,059
TOTAL ASSETS 5,160,136,557 407,350,108 7,798,222 5,575,284,884  4,922,380,543 696,252,993 2,171,877 5,620,805,413
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)

] Foreign currency risk {Continued)

2013
SR LS Doltar Other Total SR US Dollar Other Total
SR AY ¢ SR SR SR SR SR SR

INSURANCE OPERATIONS
LIABILITIES
Gross outstanding claims 1,214,418,611 57,703,856 178,650 £,272,301,117 1,45 1,905,914 - - 1,451,905,914
Accounts and commission payable 186,814,057 - - 180,814,057 73,314,933 - - 73,314,933
Reinsurance balances payable 74,661,930 8,306,622 1,170,884 84,139,436 110,151,186 183,562,512 688,382 294,402,083
Due to shareholders’ operations 60,873,479 - - 60,873,479 - - - -
Accrued expenses’ and other liabilities 78,245,287 - - 78,245,287 78,858,790 - - 78,858,790
Surplus distribution payable 106,581,151 - - 106,591,151 85,593,806 - - 85,595,806
Uneamned reinsurance commission 73,457,867 - - 73,457,867 39,772,672 - - 39,772,672
Gross uncarned premiums 2,483,739,078 - - 2,483,739,078 2,298.631,011 - - 2,298,631,011
Other reserves 7,131,898 - - 7,131,898 6,327,378 - - 6,327,378
Due to related parties 28,178,554 - - 28,178,554 12,211,276 - - 12,211,276
TOTAL INSURANCE OPERATIONS’
LIABILITIES 4,308,111,912 66,010,478 1,349,534 4,375,471,924  4,156,768,969 183,562,512 688,382 4,341,019,863
SHAREHOLDERS’ LIABILITIES
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,391,777 - - 2,391,777 899,500 - - 899,300
Provision for zakat and income tax 19,506,624 - - 19,506,624 12,453,909 - - 12,453,909
Jue to insurance operations - - - - 268,878,984 - - 268,878,984
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’
LIABILITIES 21,898,401 - - 21,898,461 282,232,393 - - 282,232,393
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,330,010,313 66,010,478 1,349,534 4,397,370,325  4,439,001,362 183,562,512 688,382 4,623,252.256
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
g} Special commission rate risk

Special commission rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market special commission rates, Floating rate instruments expose the company to cash flow
special commission risk, whereas fixed commission rate instruments expose the company to fair value interest risk.

The Company is exposed to special commission rate risk on certain of its investments, cash and cash equivalents,
and time deposits, The Company limits special commission rate risk by monitoring changes in special commission
rates in the currencies in which its investments are denominated.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of statements of insurance operations and the shareholders equity
to reasonably possible changes in commission rates of the Company’s term deposits, with all other variables held
constant.

31 December 2014

Currency Change in variable Impact on net loss
Saudi Rival + 50 basis points SR 4,320,404
Y -'50 basis points SR (2,320,404)

31 December 2013

Currency Change in variable Impact on net loss
Saudi Rival + 50 basis points SR 4,705,225
Y Z50 basis points SR (4,705,025)
h) Market priee risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices {other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar
financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company has unquoted equity instruments carried at cost or indicative selling price, where the impact of
changes in equity price will only be reflected when the instrument is sold or deemed to be impaired and then the
statement of shareholders’ operations will be impacted,

The sensitivity of the income on the assumed changes in the market prices of quoted available for sale investments
on the statement of shareholders comprehensive income is set out below:

Effect on statement of

Change shareholders comprehensive
in market price operations
SR
2014 +5% 8,908,212
~5% (8,908.212)
2013 +5% 8,476,666
-5% {8,476,666)
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)

i Capital management

Capital requirements are sct and regulated by the Saudi Arabian Monctary Agency. These requirements are put in
place to ensure sufficient solvency margins. Further objectives are set by the Company to maintain healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business objectives and maximise shareholders' value.

The Company manages its capital requirements by assessing shortfalls between reported and required capital levels
on a regular basis. Adjustments to current capital levels are made in light of changes in market conditions and risk
characteristics of the Company’s activities. In order tg maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or issue shares. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the
Company has fully complied with the externally imposed capital requirements during the reported financial periods
and no changes were made to capital management objectives, policies and processes from the previous year,

32, APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on 22 Rabi Al-Akhar 1436H corresposding
to [ I February, 2015,
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